
   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 1 

 

    
 

EUGENE WATER & ELECTRIC BOARD  
REGULAR SESSION 

February 1, 2022 
5:45 P.M. 

 
 
Commissioners may pose questions to staff prior to the scheduled Board meeting.    
To view Commissioners’ pre-meeting questions and staff responses, visit  
https://www.eweb.org/about-us/board-of-commissioners/2022-board-agendas-and-
minutes  
 
Commissioners Present: John Brown, President;  Sonya Carlson, Vice President; 
John Barofsky, Matt McRae, Mindy Schlossberg, Commissioners 
 
Others Present: Frank Lawson, General Manager; Megan Capper, Energy Resources 
Manager; Sarah Gorsegner, Support Services Operations Manager AIC; Julie 
McGaughey, Chief Customer Officer; Karl Morgenstern, Watershed Restoration Project 
Manager; Rodney Price, Assistant General Manager; Lucas Silva, Associate Professor 
of Environmental Studies and Geography, Institute of Ecology and Evolution University 
of Oregon; Ben Ulrich, Senior Energy Resource Analyst; Anna Wade, Business Line 
Manager 
 
President Brown called the Regular Session to order at 5:45 p.m. 
 
Agenda Check 
Mr. Lawson announced that although agenda item 11—Integrated Resource Planning 
“Principles and 2022 Roadmap”—was listed as tentative, the appropriate staff was 
present and ready to give a presentation. 
 
Items from Board Members and General Manager  
Mr. Lawson offered that the Northwest Public Power Association (NWPPA) had reached 
out, and asked him to submit an application to be on NWPPA’s Board of Trustees. He 
added this was different than a former EWEB Board member’s tenure on that body, 
because in this case, it was a utility executive, and not an EWEB Commissioner. Mr. 
Lawson said he would like to submit the application to the NWPPA. 
 
Commissioner Barofsky asked if that would preclude an EWEB Commissioner from 
serving on the NWPPA’s Board of Trustees. 
 
Mr. Lawson said it was typically just one person per utility, but if a Commissioner-level 
opening was to occur, he would let the Board know immediately. 
 

https://www.eweb.org/about-us/board-of-commissioners/2022-board-agendas-and-minutes
https://www.eweb.org/about-us/board-of-commissioners/2022-board-agendas-and-minutes


   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 2 

 

Commissioner Schlossberg said she appreciated the recent Board retreat. She also 
said she had finished her paperwork to run as the incumbent for her position as EWEB 
Commissioner in May. 
 
Commissioner Barofsky reported he recently attended a McKenzie Watershed Council 
(MWC) meeting as EWEB liaison, and he found it to be a very rewarding experience. 
 
President Brown said that Bill Chambers, owner of Stahlbush Island Farms, had given 
him an EWEB commemorative coin from EWEB’s past. He also cited the recent news of 
volcanic activity under South Sister. Lastly, he represented concerns from the Board 
around safety and security, and in the interest of being proactive, asked if EWEB 
Security staff could bring the Board a presentation on the utility’s protocols in response 
to such an event. 
 
Mr. Lawson said absolutely they could put something together, as staff had already 
been considering this. 
 
Approval of Consent Calendar – A, Minutes and Routine Contracts 
MINUTES 
1. January 4, 2022 Regular Session  
 
CONTRACTS 
2. Historical Research Associates – for additional funds for Cultural Resource Studies 
and Technical Support for Carmen-Smith. $125,000 (original contract amount $250,000, 
resulting cumulative total $375,000) based on Formal Request for Proposals. 
 
Commissioner Barofsky moved to adopt Consent Calendar – A. The motion 
passed unanimously 5:0 
 
Approval of Consent Calendar – B, Non-Routine Contracts and Other Consent 
Items 
CONTRACTS 
3. Energy and Environmental Economics (E3) – for a personal services contract for 
Integrated Resource (IRP) Support.  $300,000 based on Direct Negotiation. 
 
4. PIVOT Architecture – for engineering and related services for Bertelsen Property 
Design and Construction Support.  $470,000 based on Formal Request for Proposals – 
QBS Process. 
 
5. Westates Flagman, Inc. - for Flagging and Traffic Control Services.  $1,800,000 
based on Formal Request for Proposals. 
 
6. Wildish Building Co. – for a construction contract for the Hayden Bridge Powder 
Activated Carbon Building Retrofit.  $580,000 based on Formal Invitation to Bid. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS 



   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 3 

 

7. USDA Forest Service - a supplemental project agreement (SPA) to the 
Intergovernmental Master Agreement 21-229 for Collaborative Restoration Efforts of the 
Middle McKenzie after the Holiday Farm Fire between EWEB and the USFS.  $218,000 
based on Direct Negotiation. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
8. Resolution No. 2201 – Board Appointments, Committees, Outside Liaisons. 
 
9. Resolution Designating Applicant Agent for Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program. 
 
Vice President Carlson moved to approve Consent Calendar – B, with the 
exception of Item 4. The motion passed unanimously 5:0. 
 
Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 
President Brown pulled Consent Calendar B, Item 4, PIVOT Architecture. He said he 
was not fully comfortable when there is not bidding competition , and he pointed out that 
EWEB is not designing a building, therefore why wouldn’t an engineering firm be 
selected for this work.  
 
Ms. Gorsegner said the request for proposal (RFP) was based on a phased approach 
that could eventually include building design, and there is significant wetlands and 
alternatives analysis involved, and this was but one phase of the total scope of the 
work. 
 
President Brown wondered exactly what the utility was getting for the $500,000, and 
why an architectural firm was handling it, instead of an engineering firm. 
 
Ms. Gorsegner said the team involved was actually a combination of architects and 
engineers. 
 
President Brown offered that he was concerned because only one company bid, and he 
will be watchful of possible contract amendments in the future. 
 
President Brown moved to approve Consent Calendar – B, Item 4. The motion 
passed unanimously 5:0. 
 
Enhancing Carbon Sequestration and Fire Resiliency in Watersheds 
Mr. Morgenstern introduced Lucas Silva, Associate Professor of Environmental Studies 
and Geography, Institute of Ecology and Evolution, University of Oregon, who offered 
the Board a report and PowerPoint presentation on enhancing carbon sequestration 
and fire resiliency in watersheds. 
 
Environmental Product Lines 
Ms. McGaughey and Ms. Wade offered the Board a report and PowerPoint presentation 
on EWEB’s environmental product lines. 



   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 4 

 

 
Commissioner Schlossberg asked if EWEB’s environmental products were based on 
similar products from other utilities. 
 
Ms. Wade said that was correct. 
 
Vice President Carlson asked how the rates for the environmental products were 
determined, and if the rates were overseen by the City of Eugene. 
 
Ms. Wade replied that the EWEB Board has rate making authority. She said for the 
most part, the rates were tied to wholesale markets and are very commodities-driven, 
and EWEB would remain careful to account for all costs, so these voluntary programs 
do not affect the utility’s standard cost of service. 
 
Vice President Carlson wondered how the rates would be set against the fluctuations of 
the commodities market. 
 
Ms. Wade asserted that EWEB’s Risk Management Committee would be very active in 
managing those rates, and the utility also had a hedging program into the future. 
 
In reference to Clean Power, Commissioner McRae mentioned the 80,000 Renewable 
Energy Certificates (RECs) in the presentation—he wondered what that translated to in 
dollars. 
 
Ms. Wade said approximately $300,000. 
 
Commissioner McRae said the carbon offset price mentioned in the presentation 
seemed wildly less expensive than the standard market price. 
 
Ms. Wade said since carbon offsets were a burgeoning market, the offsets themselves 
were not yet fully commodified. She acknowledged the price can be volatile and is 
based on the auxiliary benefits of the carbon offset. She clarified that EWEB did not only 
take into account the carbon offsets the Utility is getting ready to execute on, but they 
also looked at a broad set of projects that EWEB would have market access to.  
 
Commissioner Barofsky said he would like to make sure the 28% overhead and 
recovery charge was closely tracked. He also said he hoped a presentation on the 
Carbon Forest Lab would be put together for EWEB’s next upriver meeting. 
 
Ms. Wade said that her and her colleagues had been discussing the potential for 
extending the Carbon Forest Lab project outside of EWEB service areas, and the utility 
would be marketing that project in places like the upriver community. 
 
President Brown wondered if EWEB would be able to see who is participating and at 
what amounts. 
 



   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 5 

 

Ms. Wade assured President Brown there would be quarterly reports on program 
participation rates and revenues generated, as well as annual reports on the various 
programs. 
 
Vice President Carlson asked if staff had talked to any customers who were already 
buying carbon offsets elsewhere. 

 
Ms. Wade replied the public opinion about carbon offsets in general are varied. She 
said the City of Eugene had purchased offsets. 
 
Finally, Vice President Carlson asked why there was a cap of 16 metric tons of CO2 

equivalents. 

 
Ms. Wade offered since EWEB was new in the carbon offset commodities market, the 
utility wanted to ensure its supply lines were shored up, and to make sure its market 
liquidity was sound, before enhancing and expanding those programs. 
 
Commissioner McRae asked if EWEB’s research partners in the Carbon Forest Lab 
project had adequate funding, and if there had been any hurdles to said funding. 
 
Ms. Wade said that voluntary offset markets were growing and gaining interest rapidly; 
she added there was great demand for them. 
 
Mr. Morgenstern said there were two National Science Foundation (NSF) grants that 
EWEB was waiting to hear back from, and there was a great opportunity for EWEB to 
be on the forefront of offset markets in the western part of the country. 
 
Break 
President Brown called a break at 7:11 p.m. The meeting resumed at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Resolution No. 2207 Authorizing GM to Negotiate and Execute Property Sale 
Mr. Lawson offered the Board a report and PowerPoint presentation on Resolution No. 
2207. 
 
Commissioner Barofsky moved to table Resolution 2207 until a future date. The 
motion passed unanimously 5:0. 
  
Goal #5: Integrated Resource Planning “Principles and 2022 Roadmap” 
Ms. Capper and Mr. Ulrich offered the Board a report and PowerPoint presentation on 
Board Goal #5, Integrated Resource Planning (IRP), roadmap and principles. 
 
Commissioner Schlossberg asked if there was a way or ways to present this to the 
public for their feedback, without the gesture seeming performative. 
 



   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 6 

 

Ms. Capper said staff would be providing the Board with guidance and 
recommendations about the public process, but they had not gotten to that point yet. 
She said their intent was to collect ratepayer comments after a rollout, and assimilate 
that feedback into—eventually—a final draft, including a section that captures the 
themes of the customer feedback. 
 
Commissioner Barofsky felt he would need to be educated on the resources themselves 
before he felt comfortable making an informed decision. He added that it would be okay 
to get this information offline, possibly in one-on-one staff meetings. 
 
Mr. Lawson said that could be arranged. 
 
President Brown asked why EWEB not meeting its goal to obtain 95% of annual energy 
from carbon-free resources was considered a “constraint” in the report and 
presentation, when the utility was currently operating at 96%. 
 
Mr. Lawson said EWEB was actually operating at an approximate average of 90%.  
 
President Brown asked if things such as: the possibility of salmon being listed as 
endangered, Snake River dams being removed, and the lawsuit the State of Oregon 
filed against the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), are being considered as 
variables in EWEB’s power supply. 
 
Mr. Lawson said they were. 
 
Commissioner McRae asked if there would be room for the Board to provide its 
thoughts on EWEB’s resource mix. 
 
Mr. Lawson replied there are a roster of things to consider; such as the Board’s interest 
in the localness of resources. Recognizing there may be other constraints that need to 
be understood further, he suggested that could perhaps be part of the Board discussion 
in April.  
 
President Brown wondered what plans or mechanisms were in place to replace the 30% 
of coal energy consumed in the state of Oregon, when coal was taken offline. 
 
Mr. Lawson said the analysis would not deal with that directly, but rather dealt with the 
byproducts, such as the importance of peaking prices. He added other utilities were 
planning on replacing their coal energy with a mix of various other resources 
 
Correspondence & Board Agendas 
Mr. Lawson offered the Board a report on correspondence and Board agendas. 
 
Board Wrap-Up 
Commissioner Schlossberg noticed the quality of Board presentations has become 
higher since she joined the Board four years ago. 



   
 

EWEB Regular Session  
February 1, 2022 

 7 

 

 
Mr. Lawson offered the higher quality of the presentations was noticed internally as well, 
and that he appreciated that feedback. 
 
President Brown thanked staff and the other Commissioners for their concise questions 
and answers, and for an overall great meeting. 
 
 
 
President Brown adjourned the Regular Session at 8:11 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recorded by Rodney Cimburke 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 Assistant Secretary                                       President 


	Others Present: Frank Lawson, General Manager; Megan Capper, Energy Resources Manager; Sarah Gorsegner, Support Services Operations Manager AIC; Julie McGaughey, Chief Customer Officer; Karl Morgenstern, Watershed Restoration Project Manager; Rodney P...

